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“Everything will be done in
the interest of the children
so we are expecting a lot
from our partnership with
Kagiso Shanduka Trust and
our teachers.”
Free State Education MEC Tate Makgoe,
at the Fezile Dabi Infrastructure Launch,
Ntha Intermediate School, 7 February 2015.
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust Programme Milestones

June 2012
Discussions
between Kagiso
Trust & Shanduka
Foundation begin

6

March 2013
Kagiso Shanduka
Trust officially
established;
MOU with the
Free State
DoE signed
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May/June
2013
Needs
assessments and
baseline studies
conducted

July 2013
School
retreats begin

April 2014
Phase 1:
Infrastructure
projects
commence

June 2014

March 2015

Phase 1:
Curriculum
& Social
Development
projects
commence

Phase 2:
Infrastructure,
Curriculum &
Leadership
projects
commence
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MEC’s Foreword

Free State Education MEC: Tate Makgoe
Two years ago the Free
State Department of
Education entered into
a partnership with
the Kagiso Shanduka
Trust (KST). The
partnership seeks to
support educational
transformation in
more than 400 schools
in the Fezile Dabi and
Motheo Districts. With
KST committing R200
million towards the
partnership, the Free
State Department of Education matched this investment
for a total programme budget of R400 million.
Through this partnership we aim to significantly improve
the academic performance of over 400 schools in
the selected districts. The key to the success of this
programme is the solid working relationship between
the Free State Department of Education and the Kagiso
Shanduka Trust. Together we have a common vision
to reduce poverty and empower the marginalised
through education.
Since the start of the programme in 2013, and
following extensive needs analyses, empowerment and
transformation workshops have been held with 215
schools. These are workshops where the school identifies
the challenges affecting school performance and
develops a strategic plan to ensure long-term success
and sustainability of their set goals.

were held in 40 schools and of the 16 067 learners who
had their eyesight tested, 539 received spectacles.
The programme is about collaboration, harnessing the
resources of several partners to achieve a meaningful
and lasting impact on the whole education system.
The partnership we have with KST is based on trust and
shared vision. Vast experience is being utilised for the
sustainable benefit of future education in the country.
I am pleased to highlight that KST has been welcomed
into the strategic planning and decision-making spaces
in the Free State Department of Education. As strategic
stakeholders, we are indeed committed to transparent
processes and focus on the relative strengths of each
organisation, rather than the gaps.
We invite NGOs and private business firms to support
and partner with us in this whole school development
initiative by adding their resources, skills and expertise
to further enhance the effectiveness of the programme.
Education is the responsibility of all. Education does not
stop with government. We are therefore grateful to the
Kagiso Trust and the Shanduka Foundation for working
together with us to improve performance in our schools.
Despite a number of challenges we face as a department,
we remain optimistic that together with our partners, we
are making a tangible difference in our schools.

“We are privileged
as the Free State
to be the first
beneficiary of this
partnership. We will
ensure a good return
on this investment.”
Free State MEC for
Education, Tate Makgoe

As Benjamin Disraeli said: “Upon the education of the
people of this country, the fate of this country depends.”

The enthusiasm and commitment displayed at the
retreats demonstrates a shattering of old attitudes
and an ushering in of a new work ethic rooted in
transformation. Participants displayed great enthusiasm
throughout, even during times when sensitive matters
were discussed.
In addition, through this partnership, infrastructure
development has been initiated in 64 schools: 31 in the
Fezile Dabi and 33 in the Motheo Districts. Of the 31
schools in Fezile Dabi, 26 received basic infrastructure,
while five received incentive infrastructure. In the Motheo
District, 21 schools received basic infrastructure and 12
received incentive infrastructure.

Tate Makgoe
Free State Education MEC

A total of 97 schools participated in curriculum
development programmes. Visual support programmes
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Foreword

The KST Advisory Board Chairperson and Kagiso Trust Chairperson,
Reverend Frank Chikane
The Kagiso Shanduka
Trust (KST) was
established in March
2013 and has since
implemented the
programme in 215 of
the more than 400
allocated schools in
the Motheo and Fezile
Dabi districts of the
Free State province. In
the space of two years
we have, managed and
implemented the Whole School Development Programme
(WSDP) which translated into improvements in the lives
of educators, learners and communities. We applaud the
Trust’s leadership and those working tirelessly on the
ground to ensure the success of the Programme.
The nature of the Kagiso Shanduka Trust partnership
with the Free State Department of Education has
contributed immensely towards getting the Programme
off the ground. The WSDP has the advantage of being
executed by two strong non-governmental organisations,
the Kagiso Trust and the Shanduka Foundation, each
with its own resources, models and experience. When
we integrated our best practices, we formulated a
programme which is cost effective yet yields better
results. The Free State Department of Education (Free
State DoE), as the government partner, has proved to
be a passionate and supportive partner of the Kagiso
Shanduka Trust. The Free State DoE realised the value
which the WSDP would bring to the province and has
entered into this relationship enthusiastically. This
partnership truly demonstrates how collaborations
between government, not-for-profit and corporate
organisations can contribute towards transforming
education in a systemic way for the benefit of
our children.
Our combined financial contribution has been
accompanied by strategic and technical expertise
to ensure that the vision of KST is realised, that is,
leveraging each partner’s tactical and practical expertise.
At the end of the day, our success is measured by the
results on the ground and the commitment of the KST
staff and the district officials in dispensing technical
skills and resources.

10

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

The partnership has to date implemented 215
empowerment and transformation workshops, 64
schools have received infrastructure upgrades, and
curriculum development programmes have been initiated
in 97 schools, among other accomplishments. This is a
testament that our programme is all for tangible results.
The Kagiso Shanduka Trust has had a very powerful,
productive journey during the past two years, but
not without its challenges. With the assistance of the
Technical Support and Dialogue Platform (TSDP) we are
maintaining robust monitoring and evaluation throughout
the implementation of the programme. We believe that
this process is important in ensuring that issues are
attended to as they arise.
As we visit schools and communities in the Free State, it
is reaffirmed that quality education is an important driver
towards addressing socio-economic challenges faced by
the underprivileged. We foresee the national roll-out of
the WSDP in partnership with the Department of Basic
Education as an important model for improving the
education system as a whole.
Two years into the KST programme, we are excited and
energised to continue the work we do to uplift schools,
educators, learners and communities. As the Kagiso
Shanduka Trust, we are committed to serving our children,
and serving our country.

Reverend Frank Chikane
Chairperson, KST Advisory Board and Chairperson,
Kagiso Trust

Chairperson of Shanduka Foundation, Cyril Ramaphosa
South Africa remains
a society marked by
inequality. No place
is this more evident
than in our education
sector. Much needs
to be done to ensure
schools have sufficient
resources and
facilities, teachers are
skilled in curriculum
content and teaching
methodologies and
school communities are empowered to develop their
schools. This is one of the reasons for the formation of
the Kagiso Shanduka Trust (KST).
The Department of Basic Education (DBE) is leading the
effort to improve the quality of education delivery in
South Africa. However, it cannot address all the backlogs
in the education system without the support of civil
society and the private sector. This is where KST is
playing a leading and progressive role. Kagiso Shanduka
Trust, established in 2013 by two respected NGOs, Kagiso
Trust and Shanduka Foundation, in partnership with
the Free State Department of Education, has embarked
on a collaborative initiative to improve the quality of
education in some of the Free State’s most needy schools.
The DBE has made great progress with the Accelerated
School Infrastructure Delivery Initiative (ASIDI). This is
part of the National Infrastructure Plan and addresses
the costing, maintenance and management of all school
buildings and physical land to enable more effective use
of infrastructure funds. Government is also focusing on
the provision of basic services such as water, electricity
and sanitation. While these basic needs are being
addressed, it is clear that much more needs to be done
to develop schools into conducive spaces for effective
teaching and learning.
To inspire us towards achieving quality education, as
envisaged in the National Development Plan (NDP), the
Department of Education adopted a theme “Repositioning
Basic Education Sector for Accelerated Quality, Equity and
Efficiency.” Aligned to this theme, KST and the Free State
Department of Education are implementing a holistic
and integrated school improvement model, called the
Whole School Development Programme. This model

includes upgrading and building new school facilities,
supporting curriculum delivery in the gateway subjects
such as mathematics, physical science and English,
developing effective school leadership, empowering
school communities by involving local business, parents
and community members in the schools’ development
and supporting the social development needs of school
children. It is important to understand that preparations
for a successful matric start on a child’s first day of
school (and, in fact, many years before this). Kagiso
Shanduka Trust is working with all grades and while its
programmes focus on preparing high school learners
for their final school examinations, there is a significant
commitment to developing Foundation phase learners in
the fundamentals of literacy and numeracy.
The Trust collaborates with public and private institutions
to make education an empowering experience that equips
learners with the skills and knowledge to contribute
to the development of our society. It is committed to
the inclusion of local communities, creating economic
benefits. The application of sound business principles
remains at the core of the KST model to enhance delivery.
This unique collaboration with government is starting to
yield positive and sustainable results, as we pursue the
whole school development model, together.
During the release of the 2014 Matric results on 5 January
2015, Minister of Basic Education Angie Motshekga
spoke emphatically about the important role of school
governing bodies within schools. The Kagiso Shanduka
Trust programme is well aligned to government’s policies
and focus areas. If collaborations like KST, which bring
together the private sector, government, NGOs and
school communities, are able to flourish, we will see true
progress in our collective mission to secure a successful
future for the young people of this country.

Cyril Ramaphosa
Chairperson of Shanduka Foundation
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Vision and Mission

KST Theory of Change

v

v

Vision

Mission

To collaborate with public and private
institutions to make education an
empowering experience which equips
learners with the skills and knowledge to
thrive and contribute to the development
of our society.

Over the next five years, the KST model
will transform schools to reach levels of
complete functionality. The intervention
will have significant systematic influence
on the delivery and management of
education in the Free State.

Kagiso Shanduka Trust developed a theory of change that states that if the educator is impacted through training,
support and the provision of learning materials, while simultaneously, the school environment and learning
experience is improved, then we should see a significant improvement in learner results as well as the quality
of the results.
If, in addition, systems, school leadership and district offices are targeted for improvement, this too will significantly
improve the learning and teaching environment for both the learner and the educator. The results of this will be
sustained by learner performance with concomitant school and district performance.

The change we want to see:

v

School that is well- managed
and resourced, with effective
leadership, the requisite
systems, infrastructure
and support that ensure a
quality teaching and learning
environment

v

Core Work

Where we Work

Transformation and Empowerment
Workshops, Infrastructure Development,
Curriculum and Social Development, and
Leadership Development.

The programme is being implemented in
all schools in the Fezile Dabi district and
selected schools in the Botshabelo, Thaba
N’chu, Naledi and Mantsopa municipalities
of the Motheo district. These schools
include primary, secondary, combined,
intermediate, high schools, FET colleges
and farm schools.
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Transformation
The Kagiso Shanduka Trust is
supporting the development of
more than 400 schools in two
districts in the Free State province.

Schools

Learning
Environment

Resources

Educators

The Learner

The Partnership

District Office

KST and Free State
Department of Education

The change we want to see:

The change we want to see:

The change we want to see:

District Ofﬁce that has
efﬁcient and effective
systems in place that
allow for good resource
governance, professional
and developmental
support to educators and
schools; and recognizes
and incentivises best
practices, performance
and excellence

Educators with the
required skills, knowledge,
resources and motivation
dedicated to learner
success

Learners able
to demonstrate
age-appropriate cognitive
capabilities, conﬁdence,
positive attitudes and life
skills that allow them to
realise their full potential

The change we want to see:
A partnership that is able
to positively inﬂuence
the delivery of education
in public schools and
leverage the comparative
advantages and resources
of each for greater impact

v

Slogan

Kagiso Shanduka Trust: Partnering for excellence in education.

12

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

Parents / guardians / family
/ community that impact
the learner

Systems

Leadership
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Chairperson’s Review

The Kagiso Shanduka Trust (KST) promotes a legacy of well-resourced
schools which are functional in delivering high-quality education for
learners and are using the learning experience to develop a model
that can be rolled out nationally, on a district by district approach.
The Kagiso Shanduka
Trust, a collaboration
between the Kagiso
Trust and the
Shanduka Foundation,
has entered into a
partnership with the
Free State Department
of Education to
deliver sustainable
interventions in the
education system. The
collaboration of these
three organisations
is the product of a
shared vision and a passionate commitment to education
as a primary tool to reduce poverty and empower
the marginalised.
The Shanduka Foundation has over the years
implemented the Adopt-a-School Programme while
Kagiso Trust implemented the Beyers Naudé Schools
Development Programme. The two organisations are
mature organisations in the education sector and their
experiences make the formation of the Kagiso Shanduka
Trust a natural progression. The collaboration brings
together both organisations’ expertise in education, thus
making it easier to scale up, increase reach, and use the
best practices from both, to implement a better model.
During the reporting period, the Trust encountered
a number of successes and challenges and through
this Annual Report, will share the progress made in
implementing the programme. We succeeded in achieving
our key deliverables across all of our streams and our
partnership with the Free State Department of Education
has been vital to the success of this programme. We
recognise that excellence in education requires a holistic
approach in order to meet the needs of schools and,
with our joint forces, we are sufficiently geared towards
implementing such methods.
The period 2013-2015 was a momentous one for the
Kagiso Shanduka Trust:

Highlights:
•

Since the start of the programme in 2013,
empowerment and transformation workshops
have been held with 215 schools.

•

All 66 infrastructure projects which began in 2014
have been completed. New basic and incentive
infrastructure projects have begun.

•

•

The Trust conducts its work in accordance with sound and acceptable corporate governance principles. We submit that,
in all material respects, the Trust has sought to comply with the highest levels of corporate governance. To manage the
programme, the Kagiso Shanduka Trust has developed a clear governance and management structure.
The Executive Committee is the most immediately accessible strategic body, while the Management Committee has
oversight of the programme’s implementation. Both these committees, along with other committees responsible
for coordination of other aspects of the programme, meet regularly and adhere to principles as set out in the
Board Charter. The Governance Committees, which manage internal processes, link with the Provincial Service Level
Agreement Committees, while the internal focus is different.

Figure 1: KST Governance Structure

External Advisory Board

An exciting leadership component has been added
to the KST programme and has recently been
launched in Motheo. Twenty-five principals and
their management teams will receive leadership
development training and one-on-one coaching.
The recent recruitment drive to increase capacity
at both district and head office level resulted in the
employment of two Project Managers for curriculum
at the district offices, two Programme Coordinators,
an Accountant, an Assistant Accountant and a
Communications Officer at the KST head office.
The Trust has also appointed an Operations Manager
to holistically oversee and manage the programme
and support the trustees in implementing the
programme. This brings the total number of staff
directly employed by the Trust to 19.

•

The appointment of an Operations Manager is
expected to result in a tighter and more refined
coordination of activities between workstreams, and
an increased implementation rate of the programme.

•

We are actively increasing KST’s visibility through
increased media coverage as well as amplified social
media activity.

•

KST’s profile as a serious player in the education
space was affirmed by its nomination as an ANN7
Campaign of the Year finalist and a finalist for the
SABC Education African EduWeek NGO of the Year
Award 2015.

•

Corporate Governance

Internal Advisory Board

Board of Trustees

Finance and
Risk Committee

Management Steering
Committee

Operations Manager
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District Management
Committee

Fezile Dabi District

Motheo District
Thaba Nchu and Botshabelo Circuits

District Manager

District Manager

Project Manager(s)
Infrastructure

Project Manager(s)
Curriculum Delivery

Project Manager(s)
Infrastructure

Project Manager(s)
Curriculum Delivery

KST’s first audit by PriceWaterhouseCoopers.
Administration Officer
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Provincial Management
Committee

Executive Committee

Administration Officer
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Table 1: Governance Roles and Descriptors

Role

Descriptors

External Advisory Committee

Discusses progress and challenges of the joint venture projects and
provides support in the implementation of the programme.

Internal Advisory Board

Assists with strategic guidance in unblocking deadlocks and
unresolved matters.

Board of Trustees

The statutory body for the collaboration and assumes fiduciary
responsibility for the Trust. It is ultimately accountable and responsible
for the performance of the joint venture and ensures that the work is
executed efficiently and cost effectively.

Executive Committee

Is responsible for the performance of the programme. That is, provides
organisational direction on behalf of the board and advises the board on
decisions and business matters relating to strategy, governance, finance
and risk.

Management Steering Committee

Is responsible for quality controls and assurance evaluation during project
implementation, monitoring of costs, monitoring and evaluation of projects.

Finance and Risk Committee

Is responsible for the monitoring and evaluation of the financial aspects of
the programme and develops and implements the risk management policy.

KST got off the ground from concept to tangible results because of the support given to us by our partners, the
dedication of our staff, the commitment of our Board of Trustees and the solidarity of the various committees.

“The key to the
success of this
project is the solid
working relationship
we have developed
with the Free
State Department
of Education.”
Chairperson of Kagiso
Shanduka Trust, Donné Nicol

Donné Nicol
Chairperson, Kagiso Shanduka Trust
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust External Advisory Board Members

Tate Makgoe
Free State Education MEC

Cyril Ramaphosa
Chairperson: Shanduka
Foundation

Reverend Frank Chikane
Chairperson: Kagiso Trust

Mankone Ntsaba
Deputy Chairperson: Kagiso Tiso
Holdings Proprietary Limited

Yvonne Themba
Human Capital Director:
Shanduka Group

Paballo Makosholo
Chief Financial Officer:
Kagiso Trust

Stanley Malope
HOD of the Free State
Department of Education

Joseph Sekolonyane
CFO of the Free State Department
of Education

James Motlatsi
Executive Chairperson:
Teba Limited

Bongiwe Njobe
Trustee: Kagiso Trust

Themba Mola
Chief Operations Officer:
Kagiso Trust

Stephen Lebere
Executive Director:
Adopt-a-School Foundation

Donné Nicol
Executive Director:
Shanduka Foundation

Dean Zwo Nevhutalu
Trustee: Kagiso Trust

Phuti Mahanyele
Chief Executive Officer:
Shanduka Group

Dr M Maboya
Free State Department of Education
Chief Director: Curriculum
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Kagiso Shanduka
Trust Leadership
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust Internal Advisory Board Members

Reverend Frank Chikane
Chairperson: Kagiso Trust

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Board of Trustees

James Motlatsi
Executive Chairperson:
Teba Limited

Donné Nicol
Executive Director:
Shanduka Foundation

Mzomhle Nyenjana
Financial Manager: Kagiso Trust

Kgotso Schoeman
Chief Executive Officer:
Kagiso Capital

Phuti Mahanyele
Chief Executive Officer:
Shanduka Group

Nontando Mthethwa
Corporate Affairs Manager:
Kagiso Trust

Stephen Lebere
Executive Director:
Adopt-a-School Foundation

Nonhlanhla Baloyi
Operations Manager:
Adopt-a-School Foundation

Yvonne Themba
Human Capital Director:
Shanduka Group

Themba Mola
Chief Operations Officer:
Kagiso Trust

Yvonne Themba
Human Capital Director:
Shanduka Group

Steyn Speed
Senior Political Adviser: Deputy
President of South Africa

Cyril Ramaphosa
Chairperson: Shanduka
Foundation
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Kagiso Shanduka
Trust Leadership

Bongiwe Njobe
Trustee: Kagiso Trust

Dean Zwo Nevhutalu
Trustee: Kagiso Trust

Mankone Ntsaba
Deputy Chairperson: Kagiso Tiso
Holdings Proprietary Limited
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust Staff

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Head Office
Kaya Nyati: Operations Manager
Gadifele Ledwaba: Assistant Accountant
Kagiso Rantikwane: Assistant Accountant
Kealeboga Moremba: Communications Officer
Nomfundo Mthimunye: Programme Coordinator
Buhle Mabaso: Programme Coordinator
Mothusi Boikhutso: Assistant Administrator

Fezile Dabi District Office
Rodney Makube: Fezile Dabi District Manager
Troshini Naidoo: Curriculum Project Manager
Pumeza Tena: Curriculum Project Manager
Hangwi Muvhango: Infrastructure Project Manager
Katiso Sekhonyana: Infrastructure Project Manager
Sonja Vermeulen: Administration Officer

Motheo District Office
Lindiwe Tukane: Motheo District Manager
Stembiso Mhlungu: Curriculum Project Manager
Themba Mavuso: Curriculum Project Manager
Alex Mmutle: Infrastructure Project Manager
Busani Mtuki: Infrastructure Project Manager
Tseleng Matsemela: Administration Officer
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“The KST initiative
showed that
education is truly
becoming a societal
issue. It is a vital cog
in the transformation
of education.”
Minister of Basic Education,
Angie Motshekga
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Model Principles

The Kagiso Shanduka Trust’s Whole School Development
model is based on a collaboration of the Kagiso Trust
and Shanduka Foundation’s Whole School Development
Programmes. The core elements of the respective
programmes are largely aligned, that is:

•

•

The views of both organisations are that their
programmes have matured over time, and that the
natural progression for the organisations is to contribute
towards significant impact on the education system by
integrating the best of their methodologies. Through
this integration, the KST Whole School Development
Programme is poised to influence a broader systemic
change in the education sector.

The Kagiso Trust programme initially focused on
team building retreats and leadership capacity
building and only later integrated the curriculum
management and infrastructure improvement.

The Shanduka Foundation’s Adopt-a-School
programme, on the other hand, started off as an
infrastructure programme and only later integrated
strategic planning, curriculum and leadership
capacity building.

Figure 2: Kagiso Shanduka Trust’s Whole School Development Programme Model

The Kagiso Shanduka Trust has developed key principles to govern the collaboration to ensure the smooth
implementation of the programme. The table below presents the key principles and the rationale behind each.
Table 1: Key Principles of the Collaboration
Key Principles

Rationale for Principles

Secure government’s full participation upfront, commitment at
province, district and school level.

The core principle is working with the Department of Basic
Education, and collaboration with the Government. Districts
and schools should be participants in the programme.

Adopt a whole school improvement approach.

The programme should be a whole school’s development
intervention impacting on planning processes, team building
processes, leadership skills development processes, community
involvement and accountability processes, curriculum
management (educator development and learner support) and
delivery processes, performance management, reward and
incentive processes, infrastructure improvement and social
problems learners experience at home or in the community and
extra curriculum.

Develop a broad implementation framework but also allow
innovation from the social sector delivery partners.

The implementation should also be guided by the context within
which some of the schools are found.

Focus on facilitating the improvement of the whole
education system.

The programme should impact on unlocking relationships,
resources and increasing levels of accountability within and
outside the DBE. Ensure complete alignment of processes
and systems.

Enhance and share skills with the DBE and the whole
education system.

All partners must work with the DBE with the aim of enhancing
and transferring of skills and capacity. Partners must be
compelled to work with the DBE stakeholders – it is about making
the system function beyond KST and not to make the system
dependent on the programme. Create space that affirms people –
make people believe they can turn the education system around.

Reward and incentivise outstanding performance.

It should force collaboration and reward partnership and
collaboration efforts – but also hold partners accountable for
delivery and improvement of performance.

Hold all partners accountable for the improvement of
learner performance.

All the partners involved in the programme will be expected to
take responsibility for the success or failure of the programme.
If the performance in schools does not improve, every single
partner must take responsibility – delivery partners, DBE,
province and district, school leaders and teachers, learners
and parents and funders.

Mobilise South Africans to invest in education.

Provide an avenue for stakeholders’ involvement in education.

Capacity Building

Whole School Development Model Focus Areas
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Whole School
Development Programme

Needs
Analysis

Empowerment
and
transformation
workshops

Educator
and learner
development

Curriculum
support

Basic and
incentive based
infrastructure

Extra-curricular
activities

Governance and Stakeholder Engagement
School Governance, management
and leadership (principal, SMTs,
SGB and learners)

Provincial and district
management support

Parental and community
involvement

Key Socio-Economic Issues
Health e.g. hearing and
eyesight testing

Social welfare access
assistance

Poverty reduction
initiatives

School safety, security
and discipline

Management and Curriculum Delivery
Shanduka
Foundation

Kagiso Trust

Government

Suppliers

Private Sector
Partnerships

The Kagiso Shanduka Trust Whole School Development Programme model is aimed at transforming public school
education based on a district by district approach across South Africa.
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Key Programme Success Measures

In order to achieve its vision and mission, the Kagiso
Shanduka Trust has defined clear objectives:
•

•

•

•

•

To use our own resources (financial and human) to
leverage and unlock both government and private
sector partnerships to invest in the transformation
of public education and enhance the larger rollout of
tried and tested delivery models.
Together with the Department of Basic Education
(DBE) to use tried and tested delivery models to
influence stakeholders involved in education on the
challenges faced by education in South Africa
To scale the intervention to a district-wide,
system-change process focusing on upskilling
educators and improving learner performance on a
larger scale.
To enhance the accountability and responsibilities
of all stakeholders in the project for the benefit of
education, supported by clear actions to sustain
such improvements.
To enhance the sustainability of the schooling system
in South Africa by focusing beyond academic results
and including other essential areas which impact
on the performance of learners and educators, as
well as the role of all stakeholders, to achieve a
sustainable and evaluated improvement in education

•

•

•
•
•
•

To entrench a culture and mind-set of innovation and
improvement among all key stakeholders. The Trust
acknowledges the importance of a strong partnership
with the Free State Department of Education.
All partners will work together to share skills,
experiences and all learnings from the project.
The collaborative project seeks to complement
and support the work which the DBE is already
doing in the province.
The project also seeks to create a model which can
be used by the DBE going forward.
Involvement and participation of parents.
Temporary jobs created for the residents in each of
the districts during the provision of infrastructure
to schools.
Involvement and ownership by communities
and schools.

These objectives have been refined to outline the desired
success factors at the end of a programme intervention of
a five-year period. This ‘window into the future’ is shown
in the figure below.

School Profiles Summary
This is a bird’s eye view of our Whole School Development Programme in action. The programme has a phased in
approach. This table aims to provide an overview of the work we have done in the schools to date.

School

Infrastructure
Development

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

Curriculum and Social
Development

Fezile Dabi District
Adeline Meje Primary School
Aha Setjhaba Primary School
AM Lembede Primary School
Banjaland Primary School
Barnard Molokoane
Combined School
Bodibeng Secondary School
Boikemisetso Primary School
Boiteko Primary School
Boitlamo Secondary School
Bokantsho Primary School
Bongane-Lebohang
Secondary School
Bopa-Setjhaba Primary School
Botjaba-Tsatsi Primary School

Figure 3: Key Programme Success Measures (A Window into the Future)
•
•

Improved
Performance

Upgraded
Infrastructure

•
•
•
•

•
•

Programme schools perform above the national and provincial average.
Measure the progression of learners during the intervention
of the programme.
Enable learners to reach their full potential.
Capacitate teachers in each phase to manage the rotation of
teachers, as well as “master’’ teachers to manage high attrition rates.
Address key socio-economic issues affecting schools, where possible.
Ensure continuity and sustainability of the programme within schools,
upon exit from the district.

Every school will have the minimum required basic infrastructure.
Incentive-based infrastructure awarded to all high performing schools
(as per agreed performance targets).

Brentpark Combined School
Brentvale Primary School
Burmah Primary School
Cedar Secondary School
Credo Primary School
Deneysville Primary School
Dibaseholo Primary School
Dorgengdraai-Wes
Primary School
Dorrington Matsepe
Intermediate School
Dr Reginald Cingo
Secondary School
Dr Sello Primary School

Effective
Leadership

•
•
•

Influence the province and the districts as to how resources
are deployed.
Develop committed and accountable leadership within schools.
Ensure that the School Governing Body members actively participate
in enhancing the schools.

Falesizwe Secondary School
Fontein Primary School
Gerhardusdam Primary School
Groenpan Primary School
Guguletu Intermediate School

Involved Parents
and Community
Members
26
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•
•
•

Involvement and participation of parents.
Temporary jobs created for residents in each of the districts
during the provision of infrastructure to schools.
Involvement and ownership by communities and schools.

Hamiltonsrust Primary School
Iketsetseng Combined School
Ipatleleng Primary School
Isaac Mhlambi Primary School
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School Profiles Summary

School

Infrastructure
Development

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

School Profiles Summary
Curriculum and Social
Development

School

Fezile Dabi District
Neo Primary School

JSM Setloane
Secondary School

Nkgopoleng Secondary School
Nomsa Secondary School
Nova Scotia Primary School

Kearabetswe Primary School

Ntha Intermediate School

Kgolagano Secondary School

Ntshwephepha Primary School
Ntsoanatsatsi Primary School

Kopanelang Thuto
Primary School

Pele-Ya-Pele Secondary School

Kraanvloevlakte
Primary School

Phephetso Secondary School

Kwakwatsi Secondary School
Le Notsi Secondary School
Ledibohong Primary School
Leonie Primary School
Likubu Primary School
Lister Skhosana
Primary School
Lovedale Primary School
Mahlabatheng Primary School
Malakabeng
Intermediate School
Maokeng Intermediate School
Mathlabateng Primary School
Matlwangtlwang
Secondary School
Meduwaneng Primary School
Metsimaholo Primary School
Metsimatle Secondary School
Mfundo Thuto
Secondary School
Mfundu Thuto
Secondary School

Phehellang Secondary School
Phirihadi Primary School
Phiritona Secondary School
Phitshana Primary School
Phomello Primary School
Phomolong Secondary School
Phuleng Primary School
Platberg Primary School
Poelano Primary School
Qalabotjha Secondary School
Reaitumela
Intermediate School
Rebatla Thuto Secondary School
Refeng Thabo
Secondary School
Refengkgotso Primary School
Rehauhetswe
Secondary School
Relebohile
Intermediate School
Renyakalletse Primary School
Retshedisitswe
Secondary School

Moeding Primary School

Rhenosterdraai
Primary School

Moepeng Intermediate School

Rietfontein Primary School

Mokwallo Primary School

Sachsenweimer
Primary School

Motswela Secondary School

Curriculum and Social
Development

Noordskool Primary School

Kananelo Secondary School
Kgatelopele Primary School

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

Fezile Dabi District

Jordaan Primary School

Kahobotja-Sakubusha Secondary
School

Infrastructure
Development

Nampo Farm School

28
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School Profiles Summary

School

Infrastructure
Development

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

Curriculum and Social
Development

School

Samuel Sebego Paki
Secondary School

Dibeng sa Tsebo
Primary School

Sandersville Combined School

Ditholwana Primary School

Schonkenville Primary School

Emang Primary School

Sediba - Thuto
Secondary School

Ereskuld Intermediate School

Goronyane High School

Serfontein Primary School

Hohle Intermediate School

SHS Mofube Primary School

Ikaelelo Intermediate School

Sindekile Primary School

Kabue Intermediate School

Susanna Primary School

Katamelo Intermediate School

Tataiso Primary School

Kgauho Secondary School

Thabang Secondary School

Kgora Thuto Secondary School

Thakameso Combined Secondary
School

Khune Primary School
Kobue Intermediate School

Tjaba Tsohle Primary School

Lebelo Intermediate School

Tsatsi Primary School

Lefikeng High School

Tsebo-Ulwazi
Secondary School

Lenyora la Thuto
Secondary School

Tshediso Xolani
Primary School

Leratong Secondary School

Uitzien Intermediate School

Lerole Intermediate School

Uplands Primary School

Mabatho Intermediate School

Wonderkop Primary School

Mabela Intermediate School

Yakhisiswe Secondary School

Mahlohonolo
Intermediate School
Motheo District

Makgulo Intermediate School

Albert Moroka High School

Maserona Intermediate School

Amohelang
Intermediate School

Matsitselele Primary School

Batjha Primary School

Mmulakgoro
Intermediate School

Mmafane Primary School

Mmusapelo
Intermediate School

Bothobapelo
Intermediate School

Moipone Primary Scho

Bradfort Secondary School

Mokitlane Primary School

Christian Liphoko
Secondary School

Mokwena Primary School
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Curriculum and Social
Development

Gamabetwa Primary School

Selogilwe Primary School

Botsime Intermediate School

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

Fadimehang Primary School

Seeisoville Primary School

Bolokehang
Intermediate School

Infrastructure
Development

Motheo District

Fezile Dabi District

Zamaleka Primary School

28
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School Profiles Summary

Mokae Primary School

Monokotswai
Intermediate School
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School Profiles Summary

School

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

Curriculum and Social
Development

School

Motheo District
Refentse Primary School

Mokoto Primary School

Retsamaile Primary School

Moroka Secondary School

Sankatana
Intermediate School

Motlatla Intermediate School
Moutlwatsi
Intermediate School
Mpatleng Secondary School
Mpolokeng Primary School
Namanyane Primary School

Sediti Secondary School
Seithati Intermediate School
Seiphemo Primary School

Nkhabele Primary School

Semomotela
Intermediate School

Ntateleng Intermediate School
Nthabeleng Primary School
Ntemoseng Secondary School
Ntediseng Intermediate School
Ntebaleng
Intermediate School

Ntumediseng
Secondary School
Phallang Intermediate School
Phano Intermediate School
Phetogane Secondary School
Pontsheng Primary School
Poonyane Primary School

Selosesha Primary School

Setjhaba Semaketse
Combined School
Seroki Primary School
Serope Primary School
St. Augustine Primary School
St. Paul Primary School
Strydom High School
TM Seitloane
Intermediate School
Tala Primary School
Tawana Primary School
Thari Ya Tshepe
Intermediate School
Thabo Primary School
Thato Intermediate School
Thubisi Primary School
Tlhabaki Intermediate School

Popano Secondary School

Thatohatsi
Intermediate School

Qelo Intermediate School

Tlholo Primary School

RT Mokgopa Secondary School

Tlotlanang Combined School

Reamohetse Secondary School

Tlotlisang Intermediate School

Ramahutshe Primary School

Tshipinare Primary School

Rankwe Intermediate School

Tsimatsima Primary School

Ratau Primary School

Senakangwedi
Secondary School

Raohang Intermediate School
Reentseng Primary School
Refihlile Intermediate School
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Curriculum and Social
Development

Seemahale Secondary School

Selokisa Intermediate School

Nteboheng Primary School

Transformation and
Empowerment Workshops,
Leadership Development
Workshops

Sebabatso Primary School

Nkgothatseng
Intermediate School
Nkhothatseng
Intermediate School

Infrastructure
Development

Motheo District

Morago Primary School

Nthapelleng
Intermediate School

30
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Infrastructure
Development

School Profiles Summary

W Thejane
Intermediate School
Wonderkring Primary School
Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust Events

Signing of the MOU between the Kagiso Shanduka Trust and the
Free State Department of Education
On 12 March 2013, Kagiso Shanduka Trust and the Free State Department of Education entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding to improve education in two districts in the Free State province. The momentous signing was conducted
by the Shanduka Foundation Chair, Cyril Ramaphosa, Dean Zwo Nevhutalu, who chaired the Kagiso Trust, and the Free
State MEC of Education, Tate Makgoe. At the signing, Nevhutalu said: “We formed this partnership because we found
people whose passion and heart are where ours are, which is in education. We are aware of the challenges of our
government’s leadership in education and therefore we need mobilisation of society to make this work.”

Project Launch: Bricklaying Event
The Kagiso Shanduka Trust (KST) programme was launched at the bricklaying event for new classrooms to be built at
Ntha Intermediate School in Kroonstad on 25 April 2014. The occasion marked the start of the infrastructure component
of the Whole School Development Programme which will address the needs of more than 400 schools in the Fezile Dabi
and Motheo districts of the Free State.
At the event the MEC for Education, Tate Makgoe, said: “Everything will be done in the interest of the children. Teachers
are also given accredited programmes through North West University which help them use the computers effectively.
We will be expecting a lot from our partnership with the Kagiso Shanduka Trust and our teachers.”

Fezile Dabi Infrastructure Launch
On 7 February 2015, the first Kagiso Shanduka Trust’s infrastructure projects were formally handed over to schools in
Kroonstad. These included a fully resourced library at Thakameso Combined School, three classrooms and renovated
ablution facilities at Ntha Primary School, as well as a Grade R facility at Phomolong Primary School. This event
showcased the success of this public-private sector collaboration aimed at transforming the education landscape in
the Free State.
“The most profound and most significant learning in this partnership is that sustainable change in our schools can only
be achieved by working together,” said chairperson of the Shanduka Foundation, Cyril Ramaphosa.
The launch was attended by Ramaphosa, Free State Education MEC, Tate Makgoe, Kagiso Trust Chairperson, Reverend
Frank Chikane, and a number of other dignitaries, partners and education experts.

34
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Empowerment and Transformation
Workshops (Retreats) Review
What is the change we want to see?

Schools that are well managed with effective leadership, the
requisite systems, and support which ensures a sound teaching
and learning environment.
The Kagiso Shanduka Trust hosts Empowerment and
Transformation Workshops, also known as retreats, for
educators, School Governing Bodies (SGB) and School
Representative Council (SRC) members. Each school
in which KST works must participate in a retreat as
this is the first level of interaction that KST engages in
before the full programme can be implemented within
the school. This allows for the reflective approach of
deliberations enabling the schools to identify their own
challenges and formulate clear action plans on how to
improve and bring about a positive and accountable
work ethic solution. These workshops take place over
a weekend at a neutral venue where school teams
participate in activities which help them identify how they
are to perform effectively and efficiently as a team, and
as individuals. At the retreats, the schools are supported
to identify their own challenges and formulate clear
strategic action plans.
The retreats are designed to help schools make a change,
find new inspiration in providing excellent standards of
education, and remotivate the schools’ teachers and
student leaders. The main objectives of the retreats are:
•
•

To build a team which can motivate and inspire the
school to provide an exciting learning environment.
To assist in the development of a strategic plan that
the school will implement to improve its overall
performance. This plan forms the basis of a contract
between the Kagiso Shanduka Trust and the school
for their participation in the KST interventions.

The workshops are run by experienced facilitators
whose role is to facilitate conversation amongst the
different stakeholders about their schools and their
constituencies. During these facilitated discussions the
teachers and the SRC of Learners are enabled to have a
conversation which will help them to identify gaps and
challenges and aid them to find solutions that will help
them in improving the functionality of the school.
Besides the educators, the SGB and SRC members, the
KST Operations Manager, Kagiso Shanduka Trust District
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Directors, District Chief Education Secialists from the
Department of Education and circuit managers attend
to support, observe and offer guidance on any matter
requiring clarity.
Participants find the empowerment and transformation
workshops to be refreshing and enlightening. After
attending one of the retreats, SRC secretary, Mandisa
Marosha from Boitlamo Secondary School in Tumahole
Parys, said that the retreat workshop changed how she
conducts herself in her role as the SRC secretary. She
has taken it upon herself, together with her SRC team, to
monitor some of the challenges they are faced with, such
as the lack of commitment from the SRC members, the
lack of communication between the team, as well as the
lack of motivation and discipline in their school. At the
workshop she has learnt that she can use her position
in leadership in a positive manner and she has changed
how she works with other learners. “I have learnt the
importance of team work,” Marosha said.
She has found a new purpose in her role, and is
determined to contribute to an improved pass rate at
her school by helping other learners with homework,
and in other areas where assistance is needed. Her goal
for the last year in school is to see an increase in the
number of girls in Boitlamo Secondary School pass matric
and to decrease the number of teenage pregnancies in
her school.
She plans to start a support group at her school which
will help learners with the challenges they face outside of
school, and in turn improve their performance at school.
She joyfully explains how the retreat has made a huge
difference in their schooling system, educators and the
SRC team are communicating better than before, and they
are involved at parents’ meetings.
Marosha expressed her appreciation for the opportunity
to attend the retreats as it has groomed her into an
exceptional learner. “I have become the change I want
to see in my school,” she added.

“As a young teacher I am very
happy and grateful with the
BrainBoosters programme,
I love being creative in
class and making it a fun
atmosphere. BrainBoosters
has helped me to improve my
way of teaching.”
Thank you!
Grade 1 Educator
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Local community members are used for the construction of school infrastructure to encourage local job creation and
empowerment. Tables 2 and 3 below provide an update of the infrastructure development which is at varying degrees
of completion. A total of 748 temporary jobs (444 in Fezile Dabi and 304 in Motheo) has been created through the
programme. In addition, 87 SMMEs (46 in Fezile Dabi and 41 in Motheo) are being supported.

Infrastructure Review
What is the change we want to see?

Table 2: Infrastructure progress in Fezile Dabi, March 2015

School environments and structures which are functional
and conducive to improving performance.

Name of School

Scope of Work

Adeline Meje Primary School

Ablution renovations

Aha Setjhaba Primary School

Building 3 Grade R classrooms

AM Lembede Primary School

Renovation of 6 classrooms Renovation of
4 classrooms and ablution blocks

Barnard Molokoane Combined School

Building an ablution block

Bongani Lebohang SS

Ablution renovations

Credo Primary School

Building 2 Grade R classrooms Kitchen renovations

Iketsetseng Combined School

Building a computer lab

Isaac Mhlambi Primary School

Building 2 Grade R classrooms

Kwakwatsi Secondary School

Library renovations

Maokeng Intermediate School

Building 4 classrooms

Meduwaneng Primary School

Handrails and 2 classrooms

Mfundu Thuto Secondary School

Fence repairs

Ntha Intermediate School

Building 3 classrooms
Renovation of school and ablution blocks

Ntswanatsatsi Primary School

Building 4 classrooms

Ntswephepha Primary School

Ablution renovations

Peolano Primary School

Building 2 Grade R classrooms and renovation
of ablution block

Phiritona Secondary School

Electrification of 6 classrooms and fitting 40 new doors
and burglar doors

Phomello Primary School

Building 2 Grade
R classrooms

Phomolong Secondary School

Building 2 Grade R classrooms and renovation
of ablution blocks

70%

Phuleng Primary School

Building 2 Grade
R classrooms and renovation of ablution block

60%

Qalabotjha Secondary School

Construction of sportsfield combi court

As Kagiso Shanduka Trust (KST) we want to make
education an empowering experience which equips
learners with the skills and knowledge to thrive, while
also contributing to the development of our society.
We are steadfast in our belief that basic, high-quality
infrastructure such as ablution facilities and classrooms
can enable a school to have the minimum functionality.
The programme also provides incentive infrastructure to
the schools which exceed their performance targets set
through the KST programme.

The infrastructure development programme of KST has
been initiated in 64 schools; 31 in Fezile Dabi and 33 in
Motheo. Of the 31 schools in Fezile Dabi, 26 received
basic infrastructure, while five received incentivised
infrastructure. In Motheo, 21 schools received basic
infrastructure and 12 received incentive infrastructure.
Schools have received new and renovated classrooms,
ablution facilities, libraries, media centres, science
laboratories and kitchens.

Basic Infrastructure refers to the building or renovation of ablution blocks and classrooms, perimeter fencing
and the provision of desks and chairs. All schools will receive basic infrastructure where it is required and where it is
not already being provided by government.
Incentive infrastructure refers to facilities such as science laboratories, libraries, computer centres, maths centres,
multi-media centres and sports facilities. Schools that produce excellent academic results qualify for incentive
infrastructure projects.

Figure 4: Basic and incentive infrastructure built in the Fezile Dabi and the Motheo districts

100%
90%
80%

Reatumela Primary School

Feeding scheme

Rebatla Thuto Secondary School

Building a computer lab

Renyakaletse Primary School

Building 2 Grade
R classrooms

20%

Schonkenville Primary School

Building 2 Grade
R classrooms 4 classrooms

10%

Sediba Thuto Secondary School

Fixing floors of 8 classrooms and fence repairs

Seeisoville Primary School

Building 2 classrooms

SHS Mofube Primary School

Building 2 classrooms

50%
40%
30%

0%

38

Fezile Dabi District

Motheo District

Thakameso Combined School

Building a new library

Basic Infrastructure

85%

64%

Tsatsi Primary School

Building 2 Grade
R classrooms

Incentive Infrastrusture

14%

36%

Zamaleka Primary School

Building a kitchen
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Infrastructure Review

Curriculum Support Review
What is the change we want to see?

Table 3: Infrastructure progress in Motheo, March 2015
Name of School

Scope of Work

Albert Moroka High School

Building a media centre

Ereskuld Intermediate School

Building a kitchen

Goronyane High School

Building a science lab Building a kitchen

Kobue Intermediate School

Building an ablution block

Lebelo Intermediate School

Electrification of 24 classrooms and connection of the sewer
line to the municipal sewer line

Lefikeng High School

Building HoD & educators’ staffroom
Building 4 classrooms and renovation of ablution block

Lenyora la Thuto Secondary School

Building a media centre

Lerole Intermediate School

Building the kitchen

Mabela Intermediate School

Building 3 Grade R classrooms and library

Makgulo Intermediate School

Building 4 classrooms

Makgulo Intermediate School

Building 4 classrooms

Moutloatsi Intermediate School

Renovation of the school

Mpatleng Secondary School

Renovation of ablution block

Mpatleng Secondary School

Building an administration block

Namanyane Primary School

Building an ablution block

Nkgothatseng Intermediate School

Fencing of the school

Nteboheng Intermediate School

Building 3 classrooms

Ntemoseng Secondary School

Building a media centre

Phano Intermediate School

Building Grade R structure

Phetogane Secondary School

Building a media centre

Popano Secondary School

Renovation of the school

RT Mokgopa Secondary School

Renovation of school hall

Sankatane Intermediate School

Building the kitchen

Sebabatso Intermediate School

Building an ablution block

Sediti Secondary School

Building a kitchen

Seemahale Secondary School

Building a media centre

Selokisa Intermediate School

Renovation of ablution block

Senakangwedi Secondary School

Building a media centre

Setjhaba Semaketse Combined School

Darkroom and language lab

Strydom High School

Building a physical science and life science lab
Building a kitchen

Tawana Primary School

Building a kitchen

Tlotlanang Combined School

Building a media centre

W.Thejane Intermediate School

Building an ablution block
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Educators having the required skills, knowledge, resources and
motivation, and who are dedicated to learner success.
support programme began in earnest after an extensive
consultation and interviewing process with selected
service providers. The following service providers were
contracted for a 12-month period (June 2014 to June 2015).

The development of the curriculum is a priority for
Kagiso Shanduka Trust as it is considered the “heart” of
any learning institution. Although KST only started with
curriculum support in June we have taken great strides
by empowering the teachers to create a progressive
environment for the learners.

Service providers for Fezile Dabi:
•
Tsebo Educational Network (TEN) – Maths, Science
and Accounting in Grade 8 - 12
•
Brainwave – Maths and English Grade 1 - 7

In order to achieve the best results a “teach to the
test” approach was adopted where the chosen service
providers focused their immediate attention on equipping
educators to teach learners to pass the test. This was
a short-term intervention designed to achieve results
within a defined period and is not intended to replace the
longer, more sustainable educator-intervention approach
that has been implemented in 2015. The curriculum

Service providers for Motheo:
•
Maths Centre – Maths Grade R-9; English Grade 8 and
9; Maths, Science and Accounting Grade 10-12
•
READ Educational Trust – English Grade R-7

Summary of schools per district for curriculum programme

1

2

Districts

Combined Total

9

21

Fezile Dabi

26

19

Motheo
19

Secondary Schools

35

Primary Schools

40

Intermediate Schools
(Grades 1-9)

20

Combined Schools

2

Total

97

Total = 49

Total = 48
Secondary Schools

26

Secondary Schools

9

Primary Schools

21

Primary Schools

19

Intermediate Schools
(Grades 1-9)

1

Intermediate Schools
(Grades 1-9)

19

Combined Schools

0

Combined Schools

2

Table 4: Total number of schools per area for curriculum programme Motheo District
Area

Primary Schools

Secondary
Schools

Intermediate
Schools

Combined Schools

No. of schools per
area

Botshabelo

7

7

14

1

29

Thaba Nchu

12

2

5

1

20

Total

19

9

19

2

49
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Social Development

Curriculum Support Review

Eyesight Testing Review - What is the change we want to see?

Table 5: Total number of schools per area for curriculum programme Fezile Dabi district
Area

Primary Schools

Secondary Schools

Intermediate Schools

No. of schools
per area

Deneysville

-

2

-

2

Frankfort

2

2

1

5

Heilbron

-

2

-

2

Koppies

-

2

-

2

Kroonstad

7

5

-

12

Oranjeville

-

2

-

2

Parys

-

3

-

3

Sasolburg

4

3

-

7

Tweeling

-

1

-

1

Viljoensdrift

1

1

-

2

Viljoenskroon

6

3

-

9

Villiers

1

-

-

1

Total

21

26

1

48

Learners who are able to demonstrate age-appropriate cognitive
capabilities, confidence and life skills which allow them to realise
their full potential.
Kagiso Shanduka Trust conducts eyesight testing of
primary school learners as part of the social development
aspect of the Whole School Development Programme.
This forms part of the larger social development package
aimed at offsetting some of the challenges facing
learners in disadvantaged communities and households.
Learners who require prescription spectacles receive
them free of charge while others who are in need of more
in-depth medical assistance are referred to healthcare
facilities. The Fezile Dabi District Eye Screening and
Testing was conducted by AMT Community Development
and the Motheo District eye screening and testing was
conducted by Premier Optical. The Eye Screening and
Testing took place in 24 schools where a total of 16067
learners’ eyes were tested. Of those tested, 539 have
received spectacles and 45 have been referred to health
centres for further intervention.
Highlights:
Prior to receiving spectacles learners spoke of itchy, red,
painful or watery eyes. Many spoke of being unable to see
the chalkboard clearly. In some instances learners had
been prescribed spectacles before but had not received
a new eye test for some time. All learners indicated
that these physical discomforts had disappeared after
receiving the spectacles. One learner spoke about looking
“beautiful” after receiving the spectacles.
Premier Optical, the service provider in Motheo, indicated
that educators can be taught to perform simple eyesight
testing, in this way advocating a preventative rather
than a curative approach. In an attempt to build capacity
for non-optical work, during the KST programme,
two educators as well as a number of officials from
the Department of Education were trained in the
fundamentals and techniques of eyesight testing, the
capturing of information and the process of referrals. This
training involves using fairly inexpensive equipment such
as visual charts, penlights and rulers to identify possible
vision problems, and rule out other difficulties relating
to learning.
At least one educator noticed improvement and increased
interest in reading in one of the learners who had
received spectacles. Although KST has not researched
the relationship between academic performance and
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eyesight support, it is nonetheless heartening to see that
some of the learners who received spectacles showed an
improvement in 2014 results from terms 2 to 4:
•
A grade 4 pupil at Khothatso Intermediate in
Botshabelo improved in Maths from level 4 to 5 in
terms 2 to 4.
•
A grade 6 pupil at Batjha Primary School in
Botshabelo improved significantly from level 1 to 7 in
Natural Sciences in term 2 to 3, although she declined
to level 3 in term 4.
•
A grade 6 pupil maintained a level 3 in English FAL
throughout the three terms and improved from level
3 to 4 in Maths in terms 3 and 4.
•
A grade 4 pupil at Meduwaneng Primary in Frankfort
improved from level 4 to 7 in Maths from term 2 to 3.
•
A grade 5 pupil at Adeline Meje, Viljoenskroon,
improved notably from term 2 to term 4, moving from
level 1 to 3 in Maths and improved from level 3 to 5 in
Natural Science from term 2 to 3.
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Working in more than

400 schools

PROGRAMME REVIEWS

in the Free State.
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The infrastructure
development project of KST
has been initiated in

Kagiso Shanduka
Trust

R200 m + R200 m

R400

million

31 in Fezile Dabi and 33 in Motheo.
Curriculum development
project initiated in

97 schools.

The Eyesight Testing
Project took place in
24 schools where
A total of

learners’ eyes were tested. Of these
tested 539 have received spectacles
with 45 referrals to health centres for
further intervention.
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Free State Department
of Education

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

748

temporary jobs (444 in Fezile
Dabi and 304 in Motheo)
have been created through
the programme. In addition,
87 SMMEs (46 in Fezile Dabi
and 41 in Motheo) are being
supported.

The
partnership
has
implemented

215

empowerment
and transformation
workshops.
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Essay Writing Competition

In 2015 Kagiso Shanduka Trust ran its first annual essay
competition. As this was the pilot, it was open to learners
in all grades from 20 Kagiso Shanduka Trust schools to
participate. The competition was aimed at encouraging
the students to write, and actively engage with Kagiso
Shanduka Trust. This presented an opportunity for
learners to express themselves and respond to a topic
that inspired them to think creatively and reflect on
their personal experiences. Kagiso Shanduka Trust was
impressed with the quality of the essays received for the
July 2015 entries. We hope you enjoy reading some of the
winning essays, below:
Topic: Nelson Mandela once said - “Education is the
most powerful weapon which you can use to change the
world”. Using Nelson Mandela’s words as inspiration write
a one-page essay and share your personal thoughts on
what education means to you.
Prize: The winner received a deskbag filled with
stationery goodies.
Winner 1
Name: David Tshepang Badela
School: Strydom Secondary School, Thaba Nchu
Grade: 12

now she is an American icon who is eager to help other
people living in poverty. She has a talk show on SABC
3 and she invites most of the successful people to her
show. If it wasn`t because of education she would have
not achieved all this.
Mr Nelson Mandela also once said “Poverty is not an
accident like slavery and apartheid. It is man-made and
it can be removed and it can be removed by actions of
human beings.” after getting out of poverty one can also
help others like Oprah does for others who are currently
in poverty to get out of it. This can be done by motivating
learners to work hard on their studies and also by helping
them financially or with materials required for their
studies like the Kagisho Shanduka Trust helps school by
building and renovating the school, Building Libraries,
Science and Mathematics labs and etc.
Without educated people within this Kagisho Shanduka
Trust this things that they do for schools wouldn`t have
been possible. Mr Patrice Motsepe who was born in
Soweto from a poor background and now being the first
South African billionaire he also helps people living in
poverty. Without education he would not be owning
mines here in S.A. He also has a mining law degree. Taking
into consideration the poverty these people grew up in, it
clearly shows that it doesn`t matter your background, with
education you can succeed.
Without education we would not have had such a
wonderful, confident and an amazing president like Mr.
Nelson Mandela. We as the youths of South Africa we
should focus on our studies because education is the
key to success and the key to unlock the golden door
of freedom.
Winner 2:
Name: Palesa Ntsane
School: Selokisa Intermediate School, Botshabelo
Grade: 12

Mr Nelson Mandela once said “Education is the
most powerful weapon which you can use to change
the world”

This sentiment is the heart of the United Nations
the belief that all countries and all people share the
responsibilities to build a better world.

Education is the key to success. Education holds the key
to that future. As the UN Secretary General has said,
“people are the greatest wealth of any country, but that
wealth must be built on quality education.”

It has many positive impacts on reducing infant mortality
rate. It leads to better nutrition, supports HIV prevention,
boosts poverty reduction and empowers women and
youth. But it does something even more important.
Education opens the door to unlimited possibilities.
It helps to change mind sets. To dream and to bridge
the gap between the reality we have and the future we
choose to create.

In many ways, education is a game changer that can close
our biggest developing gaps. Improved education carries
benefits throughout life and across generations.

“Education opens
the door to unlimited
possibilities. It helps
to change mind
sets. To dream and
to bridge the gap
between the reality
we have and the future
we choose to create.”
Selokisa Intermediate School,
Botshabelo, Palesa Ntsane

Does our background determine our future? Well, they
don`t because where you start in life never determines
where you will end up in life. The road to a better life
might be challenging but with education everything is
possible. These words of Mr. Nelson Mandela which say
that education is the most powerful weapon that one can
use to change the world are indeed the truth.
The change that these words talks about begin in one`s
life. For example you can get educated and in return help
others. Like Oprah Winfrey who was born into poverty and
raised by a teenage mom in Mississippi United States and

46

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

47

Partnerships

R100 m

Become an anchor donor for KST and contribute
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Get Involved

to the project – R20 million a year, over five years

Corobrik
Corobrik is a supplier for infrastructure
projects and provides services at a
discounted rate.

DRA Holley & Associates
DRA is an international,
multi-disciplinary organisation specialising
in the project management of mining,
infrastructure and mineral process plant
design and construction. It provides essential
pro bono engineering services to KST for its
infrastructure development projects.

Fund a specific project such
as Educator Development,
Leadership Development
or building structures
like a library, science lab,
computer centre – these
projects range from

R50 000 to

Adopt one school – which
would amount to an
estimated cost of

R2 m
per school

Any in-kind
donations of
expertise from
corporates,
organisations
or individuals

R1.2 m
OFM
OFM has donated R1 million to KST over a
one-year period for publicity through OFM
radio and its other media channels.

To partner with KST,
contact us on e-mail: info@kst.org.za
or Tel: 011 592 6511

Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr is one of the
largest business law firms in South
Africa, specialising in service covering
the complete spectrum of business legal
needs. They have partnered with KST to
provide legal advice and services in the
establishment of the Trust and the legal
administration thereof.

Once-off donations

Purchase a seat or a table
at the Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual
Back-to-School Fundraiser hosted by
the KST Advisory Board Chairs (Cyril
Ramaphosa, Frank Chikane and Tate
Makgoe) and the Free State Premier,
Ace Magashule

Tax deductible certificates will be given for the amount donated
or the value of the donation in kind
48
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Statement of Trustees Responsibilities
For the year ended 31 March 2014
The trustees are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity
of the financial statements and related information. The auditors are responsible to report on the fair presentation
of the financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.
The trustees are also responsible for the Trust’s system of internal financial controls. These are designed and
implemented by management to provide reasonable assurance, but not absolute, assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and
to prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the trustees to indicate that any
material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the period
under review.
The preparation and presentation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.
The trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
The financial statements have been audited by independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated, which was
given unrestricted access to all financial controls and related data, including minutes of all meetings of trustees, the
board of trustees and committee’s of the board. The trustees believe that all representations made to the independent
auditors during the audit are valid and appropriate.
Approval of the Annual Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2014, prepared in accordance with IFRS, which are set
out on pages 55 to 64 were approved by the board of trustees on 02 October 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Independent auditor’s report to the trustees of Kagiso Shanduka Trust
We have audited the financial statements of Kagiso Shanduka Trust set out on pages 55 to 64, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Trustees Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Trust’s trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion

Trustee							Trustee

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Kagiso
Shanduka Trust as at 31 March 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
Director: B Niebuhr
Registered Auditor
Sunninghill
02 October 2015
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Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 March 2014
The trustees present their annual report of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2014

Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2014

Country of incorporation and domicile
South Africa

Notes

Nature of business

TOTAL ASSETS

The principal activity of the Trust is to assist schools in need by mobilising resources from
individuals and companies willing to invest in the development of South Africa’s future human
capital.

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

2014
R

72 653
2

72 653

Trustees:
The following trustees were in office during the year:
Donné Nicol
Yvonne Themba
Steven Lebere
Nonhlanhla Baloyi
Kgotso Schoeman
Themba Mola
Mzomhle Nyenjana
Nontando Mthethwa

Current assets

9 870 743

Trade and other receivables

3

1 031 043

Cash and cash equivalents

4

8 839 700

9 943 396

Total assets
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Subsequent events
The trustees are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the
financial year.
Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable
to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future
operations and that the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
Operating results
The financial position and operating results of the Trust are fully set out on pages 55 to 64 of the
Financial statements and do not, in the opinion of the trustees, require any further comment.
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Equity

-

Members interest

-

Retained earnings
Current liabilities

9 943 396

Trade and other payables

5

289 552

Projects Liability

11

9 653 844

Total equity and liabilities

9 943 396
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2014
2014
R

Notes
Donations received

6

10 346 156

Other income

7

485 912

Other expenses

8

(9 816 017)

Administration expenses

8

(1 016 051)

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities

8 916 247

Cash generated from operating activities

9

8 430 335

Interest received

7

485 912

Profit before tax

-

Cash flows from investing activities

Taxation

-

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment

Profit for the year

2014
R

(76 547)
2

(76 547)

-

10

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive surplus for the year

-

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

-

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

8 839 700
8 839 700

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2014
Retained Earnings

Total Equity

R

R

Balance at 01 April 2013

-

-

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

-

-

Balance at 31 March 2014

-

-
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1.7

Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
1.0

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies which have been applied
in preparing the Trust’s annual financial statements are set
out below.
1.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
issued by the international accounting standard board. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the going concern principle, and under the historical
cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical estimates. It also
required management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying accounting policies of the Foundation.
The Trust financial statements are presented in South
African Rand’s, unless otherwise stated which is the Trust
presentation and functional currency.
1.2

Revenue recognition

Donations shall be recognised when the risks and rewards
transfer to the Trust.
Donations are allocated to project accounts and utilised as
and when expenditure is incurred. Donations received and
allocated specifically by donors to cover administrative
costs are retained in a project account until such time as
the administration costs are incurred.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.
1.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of
financial position. For cash flow purposes, cash and cash
equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.
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Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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1.4

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
1.5

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, being
the purchase cost plus any cost directly attributable to
the preparation of the assets for their intended use,
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Trust and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straightline method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation periods are
subject to the following maximum limits:
IT equipment		
Office equipment

33.33%
33.33%

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
1.6

Grants/Income from Government

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Finance Income

A number of new standards and interpretations are in
issue and are mandatory for the Trust’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2014 or later periods, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Trust. The following are the standards and interpretations
that are considered to be applicable to the Trust:

Finance income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest rate method. Where a loan
or receivable is impaired, the Trust reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as finance income.

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2009). Effective date:
1 January 2015. This IFRS is part of the IASB’s project
to replace IAS 39. IFRS 9 addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets and replaces the multiple
classification and measurement models in IAS 39 with a
single model that has only two classification categories:
amortised cost and fair value.

1.8

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2010). Effective date: 1
January 2015. The IASB has updated IFRS 9, ‘Financial
instruments’ to include guidance on financial liabilities
and derecognition of financial instruments. The
accounting and presentation for financial liabilities
and for derecognising financial instruments has been
relocated from IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’, without change, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised
in the period in which the service is rendered and are
not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised
as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entitlement or in the case of nonaccumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result
of past performance.
Bonus plans
The Trust recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the trustees and various other performance
related considerations. The Trust recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where past practice has
created a constructive obligation.
1.9

Recently issues accounting standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective
in 2014
Since the March 2013 year end, the following new IFRS
statements have come into effect for the March 2014
financial year that may require some consideration:
Interpretations early adopted by the Trust
The Trust has not early adopted any standards or
interpretations.
Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Trust

Amendments to IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2011).
Effective date: 1 January 2015. The IASB has published
an amendment to IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ that
delays the effective date to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2015. The original effective date was
for annual periods beginning on or after from 1 January
2013. This amendment is a result of the board extending
its timeline for completing the remaining phases of its
project to replace IAS 39 (for example, impairment and
hedge accounting) beyond June 2011, as well as the delay
in the insurance project. The amendment confirms the
importance of allowing entities to apply the requirements
of all the phases of the project to replace IAS 39 at the
same time. The requirement to restate comparatives
and the disclosures required on transition have also
been modified.
Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments:
Presentation. Effective date: 1 January 2014. The IASB has
issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS
32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some
of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities on the balance sheet. However, the
clarified offsetting requirements for amounts presented in
the statement of financial position continue to be different
from US GAAP.
1.10

Impairment of assets

The Trust assesses at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs is estimated.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

1.10

Impairment of assets continued

amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or group of asset) in the prior years. A
reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
1.11

Financial risk management

The Trust’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including market risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
The following sets out the procedures followed by the
Trust’s management in managing the risks.
(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk
The Trust is not exposed to any foreign
exchange risk.

(ii)

Price risk
The Trust is not exposed to any price risk.

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
As the Trust has significant interest-bearing assets,
the Trust’s income and operating cash flows are

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

dependent on changes on market interest rates.
Surplus cash is invested from time to time with
reputable financial institutions. Management
monitors and negotiates available interest rates
on an ongoing basis.
1.11

Financial risk management continued

(b)

Credit risk

The table below shows the credit limit and balance
of the major counterparties at statement of financial
position date.

First National Bank

BBB

Property, plant and equipment
IT equipment

Office equipment

Total

-

-

-

- Additions

9 600

66 947

76 547

- Disposals

-

-

-

9 600

66 947

76 547

-

-

-

(1 486)

(2 408 )

(3 894)

-

-

-

(1 486)

(2 408)

(3 894)

8 114

64 539

72 653

Cost (R)
at 01 April 2013

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks and financial institutions.
For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with a minimum rating
of ‘B’ are accepted. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position.
The Trust does not hold any collateral in respect of
its financial assets subject to credit risk.

Rating

2

at 31 March 2014
Accumulated depreciation
at 01 April 2013
- Depreciation
- Disposals
at 31 March 2014
Carrying amount as at 31 March 2014

2014
R
8 839 700
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
2014
R

7

Trade and other receivables
VAT receivable
Provision for doubtful receivables

1 085 308
(54 265)

5 000 000

Kagiso Charitable Trust

5 000 000

Department of Education – Free State

10 000 000

Transferred to project liability (refer to note 11)

(9 653 844)

Notice account – 7 day

2 818 395

Notice account – 45 day

1 069 008

Petty cash

14 772
4 928 442
9 083
8 839 700

As at 31 March 2014, all cash and cash equivalents carrying values approximate the fair values.

Net salaries
PAYE

69 008

71 005
205 637
3 382

SDL

9 528
289 552

Retreats
Retreats – salary
Travel and accommodation

Kagiso Shanduka Trust Annual Report 2013 - 2015

98 326

8 027 740
493 600
6 409

Research, monitoring and evaluation

312 500

Needs analysis

505 511

Programme Human Resources

470 257
9 816 017

Computer expenses
Consultancy and professional fees

20 319
3 243
588 127

Depreciation

3 894

Printing and stationery

7 375

Refreshments & meetings
Staff bonus
Business plan
Provision expense

21 128
317 700
54 265
1 016 051

Total expenses

62

182

Expenses

Bank charges

UIF

As at 31 March 2014, all trade and other payables carrying values approximate the fair value.

Interest income - notice account - 45 day

Administration expenses

Trade and other payables
Staff leave

318 396

Programme expenses

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash that will be used to fund further projects.

Money market account

Interest income - notice account - 7 day

Interest income - money market account
			
8

Cash and cash equivalents

Current account

Other Income

485 912

The carrying value of the trade and other receivables approximates its fair value.

5

Shanduka Foundation

Interest income - current account

1 031 043

4

Donations received

10 346 156
		

3

2014
R

10 832 068
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014
R
9

Cash generated from operating activities
-

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

3 894

Depreciation
Interest received
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in project liabilities

(485 912)
(1 031 043)
289 552
9 653 844
8 430 335

10

Taxation
The Trust is an approved S18A Public Benefit Organisation in terms of the Income Tax, therefore exempt
from taxation.

11

Project Liability
-

Balance at beginning of year
Received from donors during the year
Utilised during the year
Balance at end of year

20 000 000
(10 346 156)
9 653 844

The above liability relates to Kagiso Charitable Trust, Shanduka Foundation and the Department of Education –
Free State.
12

Related parties
Identity of related parties
Kagiso Shanduka Trust was formed through a mutual agreement between the Kagiso Charitable Trust,
Shanduka Foundation and the Department of Education - Free State.
Related Party transactions
Donations received - refer to note 6 for details.

13

Subsequent Event
There are no subsequent events identified that relate to the 31 March 2014 year end.
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Statement of Trustees Responsibilities
For the year ended 31 March 2015
The trustees are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity
of the financial statements and related information. The auditors are responsible to report on the fair presentation
of the financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.
The trustees are also responsible for the Trust’s system of internal financial controls. These are designed and
implemented by management to provide reasonable assurance, but not absolute, assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and
to prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the trustees to indicate that any
material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the period
under review.
The preparation and presentation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.
The trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
The financial statements have been audited by independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated, which was
given unrestricted access to all financial controls and related data, including minutes of all meetings of trustees, the
board of trustees and committee’s of the board. The trustees believe that all representations made to the independent
auditors during the audit are valid and appropriate.
Approval of the Annual Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2015, prepared in accordance with IFRS, which are set
out on pages 71 to 80 were approved by the board of trustees on 2 October 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Independent auditor’s report to the trustees of Kagiso Shanduka Trust
We have audited the financial statements of Kagiso Shanduka Trust set out on pages 71 to 80, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015 and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Trustees Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Trust’s trustees are responsible for athe preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion

Trustee							Trustee

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kagiso Shanduka
Trust as at 31 March 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
Director: B Niebuhr
Registered Auditor
Sunninghill
02 October 2015
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Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 March 2015
The trustees present their annual report of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2015

Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2015

Country of incorporation and domicile
South Africa

Notes

Nature of business

TOTAL ASSETS

The principal activity of the Trust is to assist schools in need by mobilising resources from
individuals and companies willing to invest in the development of South Africa’s future human
capital.

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

2

2015
R

2014
R

252 619

72 653

252 619

72 653

32 309 303

9 870 743

Trustees:
The following trustees were in office during the year:

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

3

7 516 446

1 031 043

Donné Nicol
Yvonne Themba
Steven Lebere
Nonhlanhla Baloyi
Kgotso Schoeman
Themba Mola
Mzomhle Nyenjana
Nontando Mthethwa

Cash and cash equivalents

4

24 792 857

8 839 700

32 561 922

9 943 396

Subsequent events

Equity
-

Total assets
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The trustees are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the
financial year.

Members interest

-

Retained earnings

-

Going concern

Current liabilities

32 561 922

9 943 396

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable
to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future
operations and that the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other payables

5

771 735

289 552

Projects liability

11

31 790 187

9 653 844

32 561 922

9 943 396

Operating results

Total equity and liabilities

The financial position and operating results of the Trust are fully set out on pages 71 to 80 of the
Financial statements and do not, in the opinion of the trustees, require any further comment.
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2015
Notes

2015
R

2014
R

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities

Donations Received

6

92 863 657

10 346 156

Other income

7

2 537 178

485 912

Other Expenses

8

(93 233 901)

(9 816 017)

Cash flows from investing activities

Administration Expenses

8

(2 166 934)

(1 016 051)

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment

-

-

-

-

Profit for the year

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

-

Total comprehensive surplus for the year

-

-

Profit before tax
Taxation

10

2015
R

2014
R

16 155 877

8 916 247

Cash generated from operating activities

9

13 618 699

8 430 335

Interest received

7

2 537 178

485 912

(202 720)

(76 547)

(202 720)

(76 547)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

15 953 157

8 839 700

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

8 839 700

-

24 792 857

8 839 700

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2015
Retained Earnings

Total Equity

R

R

Balance at 01 April 2013

-

-

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

-

-

Balance at 31 March 2014

-

-

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

-

-

Balance at 31 March 2015

-

-
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1.7

Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015
1.0

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies which have been applied
in preparing the Trust’s annual financial statements are set
out below.
1.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
issued by the international accounting standard board. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the going concern principle, and under the historical
cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical estimates. It also
required management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying accounting policies of the Foundation.
The Trust financial statements are presented in South
African Rand’s, unless otherwise stated which is the Trust
presentation and functional currency.
1.2

Revenue recognition

Donations shall be recognised when the risks and rewards
transfer to the Trust.
Donations are allocated to project accounts and utilised as
and when expenditure is incurred. Donations received and
allocated specifically by donors to cover administrative
costs are retained in a project account until such time as
the administration costs are incurred.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.
1.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of
financial position. For cash flow purposes, cash and cash
equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.

74

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.
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1.4

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
1.5

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, being
the purchase cost plus any cost directly attributable to
the preparation of the assets for their intended use,
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Trust and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straightline method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation periods are
subject to the following maximum limits:
IT equipment		
Office equipment

33.33%
33.33%

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
1.6

Grants/Income from Government

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Finance Income

A number of new standards and interpretations are in
issue and are mandatory for the Trust’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2014 or later periods, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Trust. The following are the standards and interpretations
that are considered to be applicable to the Trust:

Finance income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest rate method. Where a loan
or receivable is impaired, the Trust reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as finance income.

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2009). Effective date:
1 January 2015. This IFRS is part of the IASB’s project
to replace IAS 39. IFRS 9 addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets and replaces the multiple
classification and measurement models in IAS 39 with a
single model that has only two classification categories:
amortised cost and fair value.

1.8

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2010). Effective date: 1
January 2015. The IASB has updated IFRS 9, ‘Financial
instruments’ to include guidance on financial liabilities
and derecognition of financial instruments. The
accounting and presentation for financial liabilities
and for derecognising financial instruments has been
relocated from IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement’, without change, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised
in the period in which the service is rendered and are
not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised
as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entitlement or in the case of nonaccumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result
of past performance.
Bonus plans
The Trust recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the trustees and various other performance
related considerations. The Trust recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where past practice has
created a constructive obligation.
1.9

Recently issues accounting standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective
in 2015
Since the March 2013 year end, the following new IFRS
statements have come into effect for the March 2014
financial year that may require some consideration:
Interpretations early adopted by the Trust
The Trust has not early adopted any standards or
interpretations.
Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Trust

Amendments to IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2011).
Effective date: 1 January 2015. The IASB has published
an amendment to IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ that
delays the effective date to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2015. The original effective date was
for annual periods beginning on or after from 1 January
2013. This amendment is a result of the board extending
its timeline for completing the remaining phases of its
project to replace IAS 39 (for example, impairment and
hedge accounting) beyond June 2011, as well as the delay
in the insurance project. The amendment confirms the
importance of allowing entities to apply the requirements
of all the phases of the project to replace IAS 39 at the
same time. The requirement to restate comparatives
and the disclosures required on transition have also
been modified.
Amendments to IAS 32 – Financial Instruments:
Presentation. Effective date: 1 January 2014. The IASB has
issued amendments to the application guidance in IAS
32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’, that clarify some
of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities on the balance sheet. However, the
clarified offsetting requirements for amounts presented in
the statement of financial position continue to be different
from US GAAP.
1.10

Impairment of assets

The Trust assesses at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs is estimated.
If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Kagiso Shanduka Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1.10

Impairment of assets continued

amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or group of asset) in the prior years. A
reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
1.11

Financial risk management

The Trust’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including market risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
The following sets out the procedures followed by the
Trust’s management in managing the risks.
(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk
The Trust is not exposed to any foreign
exchange risk.

(ii)

Price risk
The Trust is not exposed to any price risk.

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
As the Trust has significant interest-bearing assets,
the Trust’s income and operating cash flows are

dependent on changes on market interest rates.
Surplus cash is invested from time to time with
reputable financial institutions. Management
monitors and negotiates available interest rates
on an ongoing basis.

2

Property, plant and equipment
Total

-

-

-

1.11

Financial risk management continued

at 01 April 2013

(b)

Credit risk

- Additions

9 600

66 947

76 547

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with banks and financial institutions.
For banks and financial institutions, only
independently rated parties with a minimum rating
of ‘B’ are accepted. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position.
The Trust does not hold any collateral in respect of
its financial assets subject to credit risk.

- Disposals

-

-

-

9 600

66 947

76 547

- Additions

109 343

93 377

202 720

- Disposals

-

-

-

118 943

160 324

279 267

-

-

-

(1 486)

(2 408 )

(3 894)

-

-

-

at 31 March 2014

(1 486)

(2 408)

(3 894)

- Depreciation

(1 699)

(21 055)

(22 754)

-

-

-

(3 185)

(23 463)

(26 648)

8 114

64 539

72 653

115 758

136 861

252 619

The table below shows the credit limit and balance
of the major counterparties at statement of financial
position date.

at 31 March 2014

at 31 March 2015
Accumulated depreciation (R)
at 01 April 2013
- Depreciation
- Disposals

Rating
First National Bank

BBB

2015
R
24 792 857

- Disposals

Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2014
Carrying Amount as at 31 March 2015
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Cost (R)

at 31 March 2015
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IT equipment
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

7

Shanduka Foundation

37 500 000

5 000 000

Kagiso Charitable Trust

37 500 000

5 000 000

Department of Education – Free State

40 000 000

10 000 000

Transferred to project liability

(22 136 343)

(9 653 844)

92 863 657

10 346 156

981 210

318 396

1 090 117

69 008

1283

182

464 568

98 326

2 537 178

485 912

44 904 401

-

63 348

505 511

4 069 971

470 257

712 750

312 500

8 663 800

8 027 740

954 500

493 600

32 749 179

-

1 115 952

6 409

93 233 901

9 816 017

Bank charges

20 814

20 319

Business plan

(317 700)

317 700

Cleaning

5 400

-

Computer expenses

18 777

3 243

582 903

588 127

Depreciation

22 754

3 894

Insurance

43 417

-

Leave pay

256 880

-

Legal fees

26 300

-

Marketing

74 115

-

Printing and stationery

122 234

7 375

Refreshments & meetings

140 758

21 128

Provision expense

780 896

54 265

Staff bonus

323 577

-

Staff training

10 069

-

Telephone & fax

55 740

-

2 166 934

1 016 051

95 400 835

10 832 068

Other Income
Interest income - notice account - 45 day

3

		

Trade and other receivables
VAT receivable

8 351 607

1 085 308

Provision for doubtful receivables

(835 161)

(54 265)

7 516 446

1 031 043

			
8

Expenses
Program Expenses
Infrastructure
Needs analysis
Research, monitoring and evaluation

Cash and cash equivalents

Retreats

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash that will be used to fund further projects.

Retreats - Salary
Social & skills

Notice account – 7 day

3 908 513

2 818 395

Notice account – 45 day

11 050 218

1 069 008

53 287

14 772

9 770 126

4 928 442

10 713

9 083

24 792 857

8 839 700

Current account
Money market account
Petty cash

As at 31 March 2015, all cash and cash equivalents carrying values approximate the fair values.
5

Interest income - money market account

Programme human resources

The carrying value of the trade and other receivables approximates its fair value.
4

Interest income - current account

2014
R

361 454

-

83 466

-

256 880

-

(68)

71 005

63 066

205 637

UIF

3 599

3 382

SDL

3 338

9 528

771 735

289 552

Accruals
Bonus provision
Staff leave
Net salaries
PAYE

Travel and accommodation

Administration Expenses

Consultancy and professional fees

Trade and other payables

As at 31 March 2015, all trade and other payables carrying values approximate the fair value.
Total Expenses
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Donations received

Interest income - notice account - 7 day

2015
R
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Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015
R
9

2014
R

Cash generated from operating activities
-

-

22 754

3 894

(2 537 178)

(485 912)

(6 485 403)

(1 031 043)

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Interest received
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in project liabilities

10

482 183

289 552

22 136 343

9 653 844

13 618 699

8 430 335

Taxation

Shanduka Foundation
Chairperson, Cyril Ramaphosa

The Trust is an approved S18A Public Benefit Organisation in terms of the Income Tax, therefore exempt
from taxation.
11

“Collaboration is
what is needed
to advance the
development
of education in
South Africa.”

Project Liability
Balance at beginning of year

9 653 844

-

Received from donors during the year

115 000 000

20 000 000

Utilised during the year

(92 863 657)

(10 346 156)

31 790 187

9 653 844

Balance at end of year

The above liability relates to Kagiso Charitable Trust, Shanduka Foundation and the Department of Education –
Free State.
12

Related parties
Identity of related parties
Kagiso Shanduka Trust was formed through a mutual agreement between the Kagiso Charitable Trust,
Shanduka Foundation and the Department of Education - Free State.
Related Party transactions
Donations received - refer to note 6 for details.

13

Subsequent Event
There are no subsequent events identified that relate to the 31 March 2015 year end.
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GET INVOLVED
INTRODUCTION | PROGRAMMES | KST EVENTS | PROGRAMME REVIEWS | PARTNERSHIPS | FINANCIALS

07

Be part of the change

Support the work of the Kagiso Shanduka Trust.
The Kagiso Shanduka Trust is an education non-profit organisation. This initiative intends to leave a legacy
of well-resourced schools which are functional in delivering high-quality education for learners and use
the learning experience to develop a model which can be rolled out nationally by adopting a district by
district approach.
Mr/Mrs/Dr/Ms
NAME
LAST NAME
ADDRESS
CITY
PROVINCE
POSTAL CODE
PHONE NUMBER
EMAIL
HOW WOULD YOU LIKE TO SUPPORT KST?

Send all completed forms to Kealeboga Moremba at info@kst.org.za
Kagiso Shanduka Trust banking details:
ACCOUNT HOLDER

Kagiso Shanduka Trust

BANK NAME

First National Bank

CURRENT ACCOUNT NUMBER

62416286103

SWIFT CODE

FIRNZAJ

UNIVERSAL CODE

250-655

“The Kagiso Shanduka Trust
in partnership with the Free
State Department of Education
brings together the strengths
and learnings from different
organisations and has resulted
in a sustainable, scalable
and replicable model for the
education system. When efforts
are combined it ensures that the
impact we achieve as the Kagiso
Shanduka Trust and the Free
State Department of Education
is far greater than what would
be possible if we were to work
in isolation.”
Kagiso Shanduka Trust Advisory Board
Chairperson, Reverend Frank Chikane,
Free State, Bloemfontein

We would like to extend our gratitude and appreciation for your support.
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Tel: 011 592 6511
Facebook: Kagiso Shanduka Trust
Twitter: @KagisoShandukaT
Website: www.kst.org.za
Address: 85 Grayston Drive, Sandton, Johannesburg, Gauteng, South Africa

S H A N D U K A KAGISO SHANDUKA TRUST
Foundation

Partnering for excellence in education

